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MEMORANDUM 

 

To:   Chair Jodi Remke, Commissioners Maria Audero, Brian Hatch,  

and Allison Hayward 

   

From:  Jack Woodside, General Counsel and John M. Feser, Senior Counsel 

  Legal Division 

 

Date:  October 9, 2017 

 

Re: FPPC’s Statement of Governance Principles 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Commission Hatch requested that the Statement of Governance Principles be placed on 

the agenda to be reviewed, and if appropriate, revised. He requests the Commission consider 

creating an ad hoc committee composed of two members of the Commission appointed by the 

Chair, in consultation with the Commission members, to review the Statement of Governance 

Principles and prepare a report recommending any revisions that the committee deems 

appropriate for consideration by the Commission at a subsequent Commission meeting.  

 

 Commissioner Hatch presumes that any such committee would need a few months to 

conduct a thorough and thoughtful review and formulate any recommendations that they may 

deem appropriate. He also suggests that a committee may find it helpful to invite former 

Commissioners to meet with them to hear their thoughts on what improvements to the Statement 

of Governance Principles they wish that they had made, given their 20/20 hindsight. 

 

I. ISSUES PRESENTED 

 

Should the Commission’s current Statement of Governance Principles be reviewed for 

possible revision and, if so, what is the most effective and efficient process for review?  

 

II. PROCEDURAL HISTORY OF THE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES 
 

 The Governance Principles were originally proposed as an action item for the 

Commission Meeting on January 12, 2001. (Exhibit A, January 12, 2001 Agenda, Item 18.)  

 

The Executive Director submitted the proposed Governance Principles as an agenda item 

for adoption by the Commission. (Exhibit B, Executive Director’s Report dated December 22, 

2000.) The Executive Director presented the proposed Governance Principles, which the 

Commission members discussed, debated and modified at the meeting. (Exhibit C, January 12, 

2001 Meeting Minutes.)   
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The Commission unanimously adopted the Governance Principles. (Id. at p. 17.) A copy 

of the adopted Governance Principles is attached as Exhibit D. The Governance Principles have 

not been modified since they were implemented as Commission policy on January 12, 2001. 

(Exhibit E, 2017 Commissioner Manual, Chapter 2.)  

 

III.  THE COMMISSION’S DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

 

The Commission’s delegation of authority is expressly provided by statute: “The 

Commission may delegate authority to the chairman or the executive director to act in the name 

of the Commission between meetings of the Commission.” (Gov. Code, § 83107.)   

 

A. Delegation of Authority to Chairman 

 

The chairman, under section 83106, receives full-time salary compensation, and the 

remaining members receive per diem compensation. (Gov. Code, § 83106.) Thus, the existing 

delegation of authority to the chairman under the Governance Principles is consistent with both 

the statutory delegation of authority under section 83107 and the designation of the chairman as 

the only full-time salary position.1 

 

B. Delegation of Authority to Executive Director 

 

The Commission must appoint an executive director “…who shall act in accordance with 

Commission policies and regulations and with applicable law.” (Gov. Code, § 83108.) And, as 

stated above, the Commission may delegate authority to the executive director under section 

83107, which it has through both the Governance Principles and by regulations.2 

 

The Political Reform Act also provides that the Commission appoints staff and prescribe 

their duties: “The Commission shall appoint and discharge officers, counsel and employees, 

consistent with applicable civil service laws, and shall fix the compensation of employees and 

prescribe their duties.” (Gov. Code, § 83107.) Pursuant to the Governance Principles, the 

executive director has been delegated the authority to hire, discipline or dismiss staff.  

 

C. Delegation of Authority to Staff 

 

Finally, by regulation, the Commission has authorized the executive director to delegate 

to staff: “Except as otherwise provided, any authority imposed upon the Executive Director by 

regulations adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission may be delegated in writing to 

any member of the Commission staff or any person contracting with the Commission.” 

(Regulation 18319.) 

                                                 
1 In addition, the chairman has been delegated authority by regulation. For instance, as to scheduling 

meetings, Regulation 18310 states in relevant part: “(d) Changes. The Chairman for any reasonable cause 

may cancel any regular meeting or change the starting time and/or date of any meeting to another time 

and date.” 
2 Examples of this delegated authority includes subpoena authority (Reg. 18361.1 & 18361.7), and 

proposing litigation (Reg. 18361.2).    
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